
 1 

MINUTES OF ECONOMIC & DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, March 28, 2012 

Draft Subject to Review, Correction and Approval at Following Meeting 
 

Members Present: Connie Smith, Dick Guy, Kevin Shelton, Shawn Bigelow, Dick Fabrizio, Homer 

May, Wendy Warcholik, Wayne Fortier and Jo Lacaillade. 
 

Call Meeting to Order:  
Kevin Shelton called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm 
 

The Agenda consisted of Review & approve minutes of 2/29/2012 meeting; small business update 

(handouts & questionnaires to hand out);  infrastructure update (PSNH Update; Water for the Business 

Park, Cell Tower Update); and other business (update on the lower Cohase Chamber of Commerce-Take 

Pride Hang Ten promotion). Wendy asked that an update to bring in school be added to agenda.  
 

Dick Guy moved to accept minutes of February 29
th

 meeting; seconded by Wendy Warcholik. Homer 

asked if it was in minutes about someone getting a list of all the businesses from the other Chamber of 

Commerce. Kevin Shelton said it might have been discussed; he had talked with Gary Langlois about 

that and he said that they only had a list of dues-paying members so then it would be incomplete. Homer 

said that Wayne was going to check with them and see if he could get the list and asked Wayne if he had 

done that? Wayne said he did not. He said he had checked with Tom Andross about the tower. Connie 

clarified that Liz was going to check on it and Kevin was going to check with Gary Langlois. And that is 

what he just reported on. It is in the minutes. Connie said that the list provided tonight was a start that 

had been pulled from Upper Valley Press’s mailing data base. The motion to approve the minutes 

carried unanimously. 
 

Infrastructure Update: PSNH – Connie has followed up on Keyes Flats issue – no update. They are 

working to update poles & transformers and their relationship with VT is improving. She will stay on 

top of them to get a response on the project so that they make sure they do get done. Dick Guy said that 

PSNH said that this was one of their priorities; to get the line that runs down buy Keyes Flats closer to 

the road. Connie said that PSNH is working with homeowners, trying to get right-of-way to reroute it.  
 

Water for Business Park: Dick Guy said that Connie have appointment to meet with the North 

Haverhill commissioners on the 17
th

, but one of them is here. Shawn Bigelow is in attendance tonight 

and Dick asked if he could explain the issues with the water pressure in the business park. Dick said that 

they have heard that there is enough pressure from Airport Road side but not volume and opposite on 

other end – what can be done? Dick stated that if there was a solution to that, perhaps funding could be 

sought to deal with it. Shawn said that there is enough pressure by code, municipalities are supposed to 

meet 20# PSI; and there is plenty of pressure on Airport Road (they are operating off an 8” line fed by 

6” line using 130,000 gal of backup). The turnover on 116 we have 330,000 gals but 16” main to the 12” 

main that goes through the belt so there is all kinds of water. The Precinct had done a flow test to all of 

the hydrants and Glenn has a copy at the Town office. There is plenty of volume just not pressure. 

Connie said that for those types of industrial buildings, they need more pressure. Shawn said the water 

district is only required to supply a minimum of 20# to the shut offs; and if you need more pressure it is 

up to the owner to do so. Connie said that it is the Town of Haverhill trying to promote the business 

park. She felt that what she and Dick were thinking was if they could find funding and work with the 

Town they could add something to gain pressure so that the business coming in would not have to spend 

the $30,000 to $70,000 on a pump that they did not anticipate and it would help promote the park if they 

did not have that added cost. She did not think this committee set out to  look at North Haverhill 

Precinct to pay for it; your obligation is to the homeowners and to what’s here. We are just thinking 

about promoting along 116 which is where the area for growth for business in North Haverhill. If we 

could solve that problem, it would help. Dick said that was more of the question; if money was not the 



 2 

issue is there a way? Shawn said there is a way of changing the pipe on 116 down Cold Spring Drive, 

down Airport Road to the Industrial Park to an all 12” line and the Precinct got a price of $500,000.  

Connie asked if there a way to add something up at the spring versus changing a line to add pressure or 

at the point of the Business Park? Shawn said that what they originally looked at before we changed the 

entire water system was they were going to tie 116 and the Airport Road and there would have been a 

loop and they thought they would have all kinds of water but he was not sure if that would have helped 

the pressure. Our line actually goes down 116 to Airport Road and feeds back up Airport Road and it 

goes to the Town Garage; then we have a valve there that holds pressure so that pressure is held from the 

Lime Kiln reservoir down to it; and the School got put on the higher pressure. So what we gave Presby 

as an option was that he could come off Airport Road, but then when they tried to do a flow test on 

volume that’s where we lost it. Technically, that valve is supposed to open, but he didn’t think it will 

ever bring back enough because the pressure is so different. You can do things with a series of pumps to 

bring the pressure up; that would be more than the $500,000. There are ways out there, it is just finding 

the one that will work the best and then finding the money to do it. Wayne said that the Town does have 

the figures that Shawn had referred to earlier regarding pressure and they range from 21 to 23 pounds of 

pressure. He said that he had talked to Shawn before about the $500,000 fix and he had also talked to 

Bob Maccini about a way he thought that might have worked to solve the problem for about $80,000. 

The original intention was to have some sort of light industry in there, but it does seem that when any 

type of company comes in and they need sprinklers for above that the pressure is just not sufficient and 

they have to go out and buy it on their own and maintain it on their own. He asked Shawn if the 

reservoir feeds the whole village (200 users) and the pressure to those residential buildings is the 

pressure fine for them? Have you experienced any problems with pressure on residential housing? 

Shawn said no they have not, they had addressed that issue when they did some upgrades at the Lime 

Kiln reservoir. There was further discussion regarding who had to buy the pumps and maintain them for 

residential properties. Wayne asked who supplies the water that in turn flows into the sewer line at the 

Business Park to which Dick Guy said that it is North Haverhill water. Homer May asked who 

purchased the latest lot in and what do they do, what do they make? Wayne said their names are Russell 

and Michelle Haney. Dick Guy added that they have a spray foam business out of Bath, they’ve been 

doing out of their house for a year now. And they’ve grown leaps and bounds. Wayne said they are 

putting a nice fabricated metal building out and a crew of three or four to start with and if business goes 

well they may have more.  Homer asked again what the name of the company was? Wayne answered 

Superior Foam. Wayne Fortier said that $500,000 is a lot of money for 200 users that don’t use that 

water and Shawn concurred. Dick Guy said that when they started down this path there were less lots 

sold so it may become a mute point by the time we figure out how to solve the problem. Connie said that 

there  might be further development in that area outside of the business park that may face the same 

issues and this would help them too. Shawn said that if it is a one level building the pressure may be fine 

to run a sprinkler system, it is when you get into the tall building like Presby has that the issue may 

come from. Wayne asked if the $500,000 figure was a pretty secure number, if that had come from an 

engineer. Shawn said that it had come for Provan & Loeber and they did it on their hydraulic program; it 

is a ballpark number. Connie said she would continue to look for funding if a project was decided upon 

in the future. Wendy Warcholik stated that Benoit Lamontagne from DRED had stated at a Selectboard 

meeting that there was funding out there. Connie said she would contact him. Kevin said that there are 

more properties beyond the business park that could be developed down the road so the $500,000 could 

benefit those properties in the future. Connie said she and Dick have discussed this in the past and know 

that is a possibility.  
 

Cell Tower Update: Connie said there had a meeting the other day that she, Kevin, Wayne, Glenn 

English, Tom Andross from Grafton County, Carol Miller from the State, Owen Smith from AT&T and 

their legal representative Will Dodge attended. Connie said that they did look at both towers after 

meeting, and they said they had their hands full with a lot of infrastructure that they are dealing with; a 

lot of growth that they are having trouble keeping on top of, but when they left, they did go look at both 



 3 

towers and have committed to having an engineer look at both towers to see if either of them are an 

option. Tom Andross and  said they have space on their tower for a private entity to rent space and to get 

cell coverage in Woodsville line of sight would enhance that; but  Grafton County also has another 

tower by apple shack on hill that they could use too. Connie said that the there is a 2 mile radius for the 

tower. Wayne said that Howard Hatch had suggested the one at Grafton County because it is surrounded 

by a security fence and there is somebody always there and it has the capacity. Wayne said it appears 

that ATT’s priority is in the southern part of the state because of the volume and new technology; they 

just can’t keep up. He noted that Connie had contacted them after the meeting with a firm note that we 

were serious and not going to let off on getting something in here; he thinks they did catch their eye but 

he got the sense that there would be nothing on line for at least two years. Connie was of the opinion that 

it would be quicker if they did something with Grafton County, the two year timeline was if they were 

trying to purchase the other tower?  Kevin said he came away quite positive in that being in the 50% 

percentile; he said that 70 million will be spent on NH on spending in 2012. There’s a hole in their 

coverage so the need is there and that is the first test.  Homer May asked that a summary letter be sent to 

the Powers-That-Be along with your signature as chairman summarizing what was done at this meeting 

to ATT so that they could look at it at the next meeting. Kevin said that Connie had received an email 

from ATT after the meeting and she responded to it so she will send copies to the members of the 

committee.   
 

Small Business Update: Kevin referred to the list of business that was handed out tonight. It is only a 

starting point. He reiterated that he had reached out to the Chamber and their list is dues paying 

members only. The list that was supplied tonight was pulled off from Tiger Direct’s data base and is not 

complete. He asked that members give it a review and add to it. Members can email him or Connie with 

business names that need to be added. Connie felt that at some point they would need to narrow the list 

to smaller groups and then divide it up and decide who to hit first. Connie felt that members should take 

it home and evaluate it and bring back changes. Homer said that we have a staff, a $150,000 staff 

downstairs called the Selectman Office, and the Town Manager’s office; why don’t we give them this 

list and tell them to fill this out and give it back to us when they are not changing the sign. Could you 

ask them to do that or are you afraid? You’re the chairman; can you ask the Town Manager’s office? 

They can do it, they have a staff. Connie asked Jo if there is any database at the Town Office that list 

business’s? Jo said that the tax records may show if it is a commercial property and they could generate 

a list from that but it would not be specific to a business in Town, just who owned the property.  Homer 

said “then they can’t do it according to her”. Jo replied that what Connie asked was if we had a database 

that would have that information and we do not. Home asked again if that office can do it? Wayne asked 

exactly what he was asking for. Homer said for them to finish this list, fill it out. Dick Fabrizio said that 

he felt this committee was in as good of position as anybody to fill out this list. Homer said go ahead. 

Kevin asked again if what Homer was saying was that he felt the Town Manager should complete the 

list and bring it back to them. Homer said yes; they could all come up with names but the Town 

Manager staff could coordinate it. Wayne said that might be an idea but he was not sure it was practical. 

He had just heard Jo say that they could go to the tax map and look but that is time consuming of our 

staff and why not have the 8 or 10 people on this committee look at it and put their heads together and 

confirm and add to it? As a Selectboard person he certainly wants to identify all the businesses in Town. 

Kevin said that what is not on this list which would be nice to have is who the key person is that they 

will be talking to. Wayne said that he felt they could work with the front office but to saddle them with 

this entire task is not a doable thing and he felt it was too much to ask of them. Homer asked who was 

going to type it up again and enter the new names. Connie said she was. Homer said ok, move on, next 

topic. Connie said she will be able to update the list she already has as they go along. Homer said good; 

let’s go, next. 
 

Kevin said that he had handed out a questionnaire as a starting place for things that they might ask 

Business owners. The suggested ones are as follows: 1) What are your three top challenges in growing 



 4 

or maintaining your current business? 2) Do you have plans to grow or expand your business in the next 

24 months? If yes, do you plan growth within the Town of Haverhill? 3) What is current workforce? 

Wayne said that as you ask these basic questions you may get answers that come up with a whole other 

set of questions. Wendy felt it might be important to know where they came from; did they start their 

business here of come from somewhere else. Dick Fabrizio felt it was important to know what audience 

they wanted to reach. Connie said that a lot of the Cohase Chamber information is about marketing and 

it is good to know what area business wants along that line; where they want to draw from. Homer 

referred to a questionnaire that was done 7 or 8 years ago; it was a massive questionnaire that was sent 

to all the Town that may have some sections in it about business questions. Wendy Warcholik said that 

the Planning Board had done it. Homer asked if they could get copies. Connie did not think they wanted 

to overwhelm people with the first questionnaire by asking to many things. Jo said the questionnaire that 

they were referring to was done as part of the Master Plan update that the Planning Board is mandated to 

do every 10 years or so. Kevin asked that a copy of the Master Plan and the questionnaire be supplied 

for the next meeting if possible. Connie felt that with the information that will be provided and the 

updates that the committee members are to supply of business names the whole thing can be wrapped up 

at the next meeting. Homer said the whole questionnaire was about growth; how much growth does this 

Town want. Jo will look into providing copies for the next meeting of the Master Plan and the 

questionnaire.  
 

WW talked about school administrators meeting. She said that she had talked to Bob Jones, Principal, 

and he just wanted more information as to what the committee was seeking from him. She told him they 

wanted to talk about labor and educational efforts; internship preparing young workforce. Was there any 

other information that this committee wants him to specifically address. Kevin said that the points she 

referenced were the ones they had hit on at the last meeting. Wendy said that this committee had also 

mentioned reaching out to the tech school across the river but she had not done that yet. Homer May 

thought it would be beneficial to obtain a list from the school system of the past trends of enrollment; 

how they have dropped off or grown and future projections for schools for next 5 years. Education costs 

are part of our economic situation. The costs keep going up but what is the enrollment doing? Kevin 

Shelton thought the SAU should be able to provide that. Connie thought a stat provided should be how 

many are going on to post-secondary education and how many stay here? Wendy will get statistics.  
 

Hang 10 Take 5: Kevin gave an update on Chambers promotion; the 1
st
 meeting had good attendance; 

2
nd

 meeting no one there. The direction of the 1
st
 meeting was what they are trying to achieve was to get 

someone other than the chamber to fund it, manage it, make it happen. Talking with Mark today, after 

the second meeting, the chamber has decided to basically own this. The original audience they were 

seeking was the Boston, Montreal, New York audience. They are kind of bringing things closer to home. 

It’s all about dollars. They are budgeting 150 hours of Chamber labor and right around a $6,000 budget 

to kick this promotion off with businesses funding it; the first level was $200, the 2
nd

 was $100. They 

will focus on this region. Mark was full of enthusiasm and going ahead with this. Kevin believes it is a 

program will benefit retail business on both sides of the river, but certainly Haverhill as well. Wayne 

said he attended first meeting and there were 18-20 people there and a lot of good ideas floating around.  

The logo for the Hang 10 Take 5 was really done nice. They were looking for a person as a marketer to 

pretty much devote full time to that and not be employed at some other business because that is the kind 

of attention they believe it will need. Kevin said it includes a website and maintaining that and hopes 

that grant money may be available for 2013 and he felt it was a great initiative. Wendy Warcholik said 

that is one of the biggest challenges. She felt that at future meetings they may need to discuss how to 

market this area. Kevin said that in a round about way it could improve a manufacturing business too 

because someone might be looking to live in the perfect place and while looking here find the job that 

they want with a local manufacturing company.  

 

 



 5 

 

Homer May wanted a summary of Technology Committee meeting with Scott Nichols and the potential 

website for economic coordinating council to put together something. He asked if we have a report for 

that, can we see the minutes? Wendy Warcholik said there were no minutes, but it was for the Town 

website not for the website for business. It was discussion about upgrading the Town website. Scott 

presented google website vs. WordPress and talked about the two different models and how we could 

work with either software. It was just a focus of working with the Town website at that meeting. Homer 

asked what the final decision was. Wendy said that his recommendation was to go with WordPress 

format; it is the easiest, met criteria, and the cost is miniscule. She further stated that no decision has 

been made yet, but it is a good basis for what we would like to do with Economic Development website. 

It’s a good process to go through. Homer said that the Selectboard opposed to that. Wendy Warcholik 

said she did not believe that was so. Homer felt that it would be nice to promote this Town without 

having to step on anyone’s toes by putting out minutes of everything and open the door so that we have 

a wide open time but you don’t to do it. Wayne asked Homer what he meant by that. Homer said that the 

website idea for this committee is being squashed, I believe. He said he was going to get up and walk 

out because we’re not getting anywhere on it and I’m leaving. I’m going to get up and walk out because 

we’re not doing anything on it. The Selectboard actually said that they don’t want to make any changes 

in what we have. Wayne said that the Town publishes our minutes on our website currently. He felt that 

what the Town’s committee is looking at, Homer, is to do some upgrading of that website and we don’t 

want it to become a free-for-all; we want that to discipline ourselves to stay on governmental issues and 

not necessarily social issues, like Town Meeting events, that are what a Town website is geared for. Can 

we expand that; yes and we are in the process of looking at how to do that so we are open to some 

suggestions. Wayne further stated that we had a meeting with Mr. Nichols which was really fascinating. 

I’m not a computer geek; Mr. Nichols is. We met with him for maybe an hour and in that hour, I learned 

more in that hour than I ever had on any course that I’ve taken. This guy is dynamic. And to see what he 

is actually doing with his students in a classroom was an eye-popper for me. It really was; but we have 

to sit down and see how we can incorporate and do some major upgrading of our website. My 

understanding is that we haven’t upgraded our website for 8 or 10 years. So there are different types of 

programs. He gave us two, I believe; gave us the pros and cons of each. We have to decide and I think 

we are going to have another meeting with him. We gave him some thoughts of what we had and I think 

he’s willing to work with the Town’s committee on seeing how that upgrade can be made. We do 

publish, we are open, we publish all our meetings, all our events. Can we do that in a more snappy 

manner visually, that’s one aspect and I think we can. Can we broaden what we can do; that’s what 

we’ve been considering. I think the Board is not trying to quash anybody. Now, does that dovetail into 

this committee’s website committee; I think it does. But we haven’t solidified those connections yet, 

because we don’t truly know what it is that we can do but I think the overall purpose certainly was 

website. Wayne stated that he heard loud and clear from this committee, the first item they identified 

was website and the Board is working towards that. Yes it is slow but the process is moving on and he 

thinks the technology committee will come to some sort of recommendation this year as what to do with 

website. It also takes money; we did devote some money to website, not much, but a little. We will 

continue to look at that, we are moving forward. Homer said he did it for free for four years and it didn’t 

cost the Town anything. Wayne said that what the Town has done so far has done so far hasn’t cost the 

Town anything. It might not cost the Town much in the interim; I don’t know yet. Homer said that as far 

as this committee having its own website that is out of the question. Kevin said that, from where he sits, 

this committee was to make recommendations and if the recommendation was that there be a separate 

website, and he did not know if that had been founded yet, that has not been determined yet by this 

committee. Homer said that Wayne had just said that they cannot do anything but push the Town 

government on the website. Kevin said that this committee’s job was only makes recommendations. 

Homer said that Wayne had just said that the Town Website was only for Town business. Kevin said 

that was different, they are talking about having two websites; one for Economic Development and 

tourism.  Homer asked if there was any hope for that. Kevin again stated that they have not made their 



 6 

recommendations as a committee yet. Connie asked if the Selectboard envisioned a link to the Economic 

Development website in the future. Kevin said that was the conversation. Wayne said he was at a two-

hour meeting yesterday with our 250
th

 public relations committee and I didn’t realize how difficult it 

was to create a website in one respect and do the different graphics on it, like that brochure Take 5, 

Hang 10. That is just– it looks simple to the layman, it looks simple. It’s not simple and it’s costly. It can 

be very costly, so we are working our way through that and Jim Hobbs uses the website, he publishes 

with Amazon; gets a 100 hits a day in his little business in Woodsville. When you bring in a younger, 

professional group in; we had Maryann Aldrich the Communications Director at Cottage Hospital; we 

had Kesha Luce from Alumni Hall. Now Kesha has been very successful in producing some very high 

quality graphic advertisement. She’s been able to do that through a family member who is in that 

business. We cannot rely on that; we have to be self-sustaining, but amazing how difficult it might be to 

put glossy little fold open brochure together. Just going through that, trying to sift through that, that was 

2 hours in the making and that committee had just formed, but they are off and running. But their prime 

thing is to create a website for 250th and link it somehow to the Town. We definitely want to be able to 

direct people off our website to those links that would be very beneficial to them; so I can see that 

happening. It is not a small task. Wendy said that they could get help to build this website; students to 

help; Scott would help to make sure that would happen and just put final touches on this website. Homer 

handed out a business card for a new site that he had just put live today; it is about 300 pages promoting 

Northern New Hampshire. He said to take a look at it when you get a chance. It promotes Northern New 

Hampshire only, from Haverhill to Pittsburgh. Connie asked whose website it was. Homer said it was 

his and if you decide you need some help, let me know. Homer departed the meeting.  
 

Wayne Fortier met with Bruce Labs concerning the old jail and his thoughts on maybe turning that into 

some sort of Tech Center. He thought it was way beyond the SAU and should incorporate economic 

business. Wayne’s thought is that Oxbow does a good job; it’s just that the time on task for our students 

is very limited. If they had a closer facility that was run all day long, two miles from their main campus, 

that it might be a little more beneficial, but not successful in going beyond that. He knows that the 

delegation meets April 10, and essentially our committee is floundering badly; it doesn’t have any real 

recommendations. It’s hard because the building is still occupied and you can’t get into the building and 

really look in detail at what you could or could not do with it as far as renovating for electricity, water, 

and things like that. The other problem is that the County can’t sell the, but they can lease it or rent it. 

The newest portion of that jail is 24 years old; it’s not in bad shape He doesn’t think any one of those 

roofs leak. No major repairs that have to be made because of normal utility. But if a business were to go 

in there, they’d have to renovate internally/externally for their needs. Parking is not the greatest there, so 

he doesn’t know. The first figures we saw was a little over $400,000 to tear down and fill it it. Howard 

had an excellant idea of turning it into some sort of agricultural program, given the fact that the county is 

the only farm left in all 10 counties; with such an operation and to include high school students as well. 

He doesn’t know where funding is coming from to sustain it. Connie asked if  NH Technical does 

anything like that or would they look at something like that at a high school level? Wayne did not know 

the answer to that. Connie asked how Riverbend is structured; it’s not just a part of Oxbow; it’s separate 

somehow. Wendy said that Littleton had gotten some major money to do some Vo-Tech training. 

Connie said that Littleton tried to do electrical training, but got cancelled due to lack of enrollment. 

Riverbend may have an idea but members were not sure if they would feel that we were affecting their 

enrollment.  
 

It was clarified to all that the Business list changes should be sent to Connie or Kevin and will be 

brought back to the next meeting which will be April 25, at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Adjourn Meeting:  Connie Smith made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Wendy Warcholik and 

carried unanimously. Chairman adjourned the meeting at 7:46 pm.  
 

Minutes transcribed by Karen Hyde and Jo Lacaillade 


